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Built after 1793, on one of the plots assigned during the
final resettlement of the village of Ojo Caliente, the chapel of
Santa Cruz de Ojo Caliente remains a visible reminder of the
religious devotion and hardship suffered by 18th century
residents at the Ute and Comanche frontier of New Mexico.

The chapel, licensed January 13, 1811 and blessed on January
3 of the following year, was a visita of the church of Santo
Tomds de Abiquiu pefore U.S. occupation. Inventories of its
furnishings were made by Cura Juan Bautista Guevara in 1818
and by Cura Ferné&ndez de San Vicente in 1826 as part of their
official visitations of New Mexico churches on behalf of the
Bishop of Durango.

Included in these listings were: a number of wooden candle-
sticks, a small bell in the tower, a confessional and pulpit and
several images of the saints. Most of these items were also
mentioned by Ernest Ingersoll in his Crest of the Continent as
still in the chapel in 1885. His description of the church is
as follows:

The church itself of course was built of adobe, the facade
being supported on the right of the door by a great sloping
buttress, which was not only a brace, but has served in plac
of a ladder to those who built the roof and parapets. At
each corner, in front a little protuberance hinted that the
architect had side-~towers in his mind, while the center was
carried up into a low gable, surmounted by a square bit of
clay work and timber, bearing a wooden cross and sustaining
a homemade bell, whose greenish and rough cast exterior gave
it an appearance of the most corroded antiquity. Recent
rains had evidently damaged the walls very much for great
hollows had been washed in them. . .The little round box of
a pulpit, painted in streaks of red and blue, had replaced
its lost staircase with a ladder, and its sounding-board was
a spoon-shaped piece of plank about the size of a chair-seat
inside which was traced a white dove on a blue ground, its
wings outspread in full conventionality. . .The altar itself
bore in the center an image of the Virgin Mary, about half
life size, dressed much like a great doll. On each side of
her were tall tallow candles, set in rough holders whittled
out of billets of wood into a rounded pillar. . .Centuries
have rolled over its adobe walls, and its roof of closely
set logs and adze-carved brackets. . .

Although not described by Ingersoll, the chapel in the 1880
also contained a hand-carved altar screen or reredos as shown
by interior photographs in the Museum of New Mexico Collection.
The altar screen and the other furnishings have long since been
removed, and local citizens have no idea where the remnants have
gone.

Architecturally, the chapel was an interesting example of
New Mexico colonial style in adobe, before its present reduction
to a barn. The exposed location of Ojo produced a chapel with a

minimum of fenestration; few and small openings high up in the
(See Continuation Sheet #1)

Ul

138§

SNOI1J3NYd1SNI



Form 10-300a UNITED STA&EPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE.
(July 196%) N NAL PARK SERVICE .
New Mexico
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |COuUNTY
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

Taos
FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet #1) APR T4 1978

(Number all entries) 7. DESCRIPTION

walls. The round vigas were exceptionally large and closely
spaced in proportion to the size of the building. The corbels
were good examples of the simplified profiles used at the end of
the Spanish period in contrast to those of the early 18th century.
Vigas and corbels are still in excellent condition. Although
windows have been cut into the walls and a tin roof installed, all
at a comparatively late date, the basic chapel-fortress design of
Santa Cruz de Ojo Caliente has not changed. The structure is in
reasonably good condition and could be rehabilitated for adaptive
community use while retaining its historic integrity.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The church of Santa Cruz in 0Ojo Caliente was built on the
south side of the plaza a few years after the refounding of the
settlement by Governor de la Concha in 1793. It was then a
chapel designated as a visita of the church of Santo Tomds in
Abiquiu. The license for the chapel was dated January 3, 1811
and the date of the official blessing was January 13, 1812.

During the 18th Century, the Ojo Caliente settlement, located
in a remote valley of northern New Mexico, was a frontier out-
post within the jurisdiction of the Villa of Santa Cruz de la
Canada and had a troubled history since it was particularly
exposed to the Ute and Comanche attack. First settled about
1730 with the plaza located on a mesa just east of the 0Ojo
Caliente stream, it was abandoned in 1748. Some settlers
returned briefly in 1751-1752 on orders of the Governor, Tomés
VEéles y Cachupin apparently building the plaza along the stream
where their crops were planted but were also driven out. A
third attempt at permanent settlement was ordered by the govern-
ors from 1766 through 1769 but the settlers refused to return.

Chapels had been built at each former plaza site but were in
ruin when permanent settlement was made in 1793. Although

their plaza on the original 1730-1748 mesa site, they did not
comply, but instead returned to the river location near their
crops in spite of continual danger from the Ute and Comanches.
Title to Ojo Caliente lands was reaffirmed during the Mexican
period in 1824 by Governor Bartolomé& Baca.

The chapel of Santa Cruz de Ojo Caliente was inventoried by
Cura Juan Bautista Guevara, representative of the Bishop of
Durango, on July 10, 1818 and again by Fernandez de San Vicente
in 1826.

Although modified in appearance since the turn of this
century, the chapel of Santa Cruz has retained its fortress-1likd
appearance. A new church named St. Mary's was constructed in
the 1950's at which time the Archdiocese of Santa Fe planned to
demolish the older church but was prevented from doing so by
local opposition since the residents had a strong feeling for
the historic church building. In addition, many objected as
the surveys of properties adjacent to the Ojo Caliente plaza
were all based on the chapel as a point of triangulation. -

Governor de la Concha had instructed the colonists to reestablish

Appropriate rehabilitation of the historic building would be an

to the village and its hot springs.

lasset—to—theresidents—especially since-many wvisitors are attrac
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